
Town of Garner 
Work Session Minutes 

May 31, 2016 
 
 

The Council met in a Work Session at 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 31, 2016 in the Garner Police Department 
Training Room located at 912 7th Avenue. 
 
Present:  Mayor Ronnie Williams, Council Member Jackie Johns, Council Member Buck Kennedy, and Council 
Member Marshburn.    Council Member Singleton arrived at 6:05 p.m.  Mayor Pro Tem Kathy Behringer had an 
excused absence. 
 
Staff Present:  Rodney Dickerson-Town Manager, John Hodges-Asst. Town Manager-Development Services, 
Reginald Buie-Neighborhood Improvement Manager, Michael Gammon-Budget & Special Projects Manager, 
Brad Bass-Planning Director, Rick Mercier-Communications Manager, Sonya Shaw-Parks & Recreation Director, 
Pam Wortham-Finance Director and Brandon Zuidema-Police Chief. 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Mayor Ronnie Williams called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Motion: Marshburn 
Second:  Johns 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
REPORTS/DISCUSSION 
 
Neighborhood Improvement Update 
Presenter:  Reginald Buie, Neighborhood Improvement Manager 

 
Mr. Buie provided an update on improvements, activities, and projects the Neighborhood Improvement 
Program is working on. 

• The spring Garner 101 graduated 20 participants and received positive feedback from attendees.  Mr. 
Buie expressed concern with participant numbers being down from the previous class of 35.  The next 
Midday Garner 101 starts in August and will be targeting stay at home moms and retirees. 

• The Neighborhood Leadership Academy is scheduled for June 9th – July 21st on Thursday evenings and 
has 17 citizens enrolled. Rebuilding Together of the Triangle recently sent out mailings targeting areas  
in the downtown area.  They will be assisting the Town with major repairs to Rand Mill Park. Next year 
the target area will be the residential areas in New Rand Road. 

Upcoming projects for use of bond funds: 
• The Cloverdale street lighting projects.  The Engineering Department recently completed a lighting study 

and determined a need for 49 new lights.  As soon as the cost estimate is received the rating process will 
begin. Purdue Street sidewalk connection will be roughly 850 feet of curb and gutter with an estimate of 
$30,000 - $40,000. 

 
Council Member Marshburn asked how many Garner 101 graduates the Town has had to date and   Mr. Buie 
responded approximately 200 graduates.   Council Member Marshburn asked how much money was allocated 
for Rebuilding Together and  Mr. Buie responded that  $20,000  was budgeted for this year and $30,000  for next 
year.  Mr. Dickerson added that some unspent funds have been set aside to help with potential projects for next 
year.   
 



Council Member Johns asked how many participants were needed to conduct a Garner 101 class and Mr. Buie 
responded seventeen. 
 
Council Member Singleton asked about the length of sidewalk off Purdue Street and if it connected to Kelly 
Subdivision and Garner Road.  Mr. Buie confirmed that you can walk all the way from Kelly Crossings to 
Chadwick Apartments.  
Council Member Kennedy asked if the lighting in Cloverdale Subdivision will be up to the standards of a new 
subdivision.  Mr. Chalk responded the standard is 200 feet between lights and the 49 lights will bring this 
neighborhood within this standard. 
 
Action:  Presentation only; no action taken 
 
Town Flag 
Presenter:  Rick Mercier, Communications Manager 
 
Staff has worked with an area vendor to produce mock-ups of options for a Town of Garner flag.  Staff brought 
in 3 different mock-ups including Garner “A great place to be” with swooshes, Garner with swooshes and Seal.  
Council discussed different options including adding borders, the chartered date and state. 
 
Action:   Requested staff research additional options; include borders, chartered date, and state. 
 
Sanitary Sewer Easement Request 
Presenter:  Tony Chalk, Town Engineer 
 
Mr. Chalk explained that the engineer working on the site plan for the property at 2015 Aversboro Road is 
requesting an additional 10 feet of easement across property the Town owns at the intersection of Old 
Scarborough Lane and Aversboro Road.  The City of Raleigh now requires 30’ easements for sanitary sewer 
easements, and the existing easement to serve the property at 2015 Aversboro is only 20’.  Council Member 
Kennedy asked about the current designation for this property and Mr. Chalk explained it was given as open 
space and there are no current plans for this property. 
 
Action:  Developer to move forward with planning; bring back to Council at a future meeting. 

 
Lobbyist Services Proposal 
Presenter:  Rodney Dickerson, Town Manager 
 
Mr. Dickerson advised Council that Chris Hollis and Sam Bridges have each submitted a proposal for lobbyist 
services for the Town of Garner.  Lobbyist services would include research, guidance and representation for the 
Town on municipal and legislative matters on the local, state and federal levels.  Mr. Dickerson stated the Town 
needs to be clear about what we expect to get out of these services.  A lobbyist needs to be registered with the 
state and the Town would be a lobbyist principal requiring quarterly reporting, ethics classes, subject to the 
state gift band and what type of meals and gifts could be accepted.  The Town would need to be careful about 
what functions are supported ensuring there is no conflict with others our lobbyist supports.  The Town could 
choose to have a lobbyist on retainer or just engage one as needed for a specific matter.   
 
Council Member Marshburn stated he was not convinced the Town needed to have a lobbyist on retainer; he is  
open to one on an as-needed basis.  Council Member Johns asked about the  benefits the Town would receive 
for the amount of money being  charged and if any other towns our size have a lobbyist.  Council Member 
Singleton stated he could see at a local level how it may be beneficial but would need to discuss what specifically 
the Town would target. Council Member Kennedy stated when the Town decides it needs a lobbyist, it’s too 
late.  Garner is going to grow and a lobbyist is needed for the Town’s relationship with NCDOT.  The Town needs 
all of the help and financial assistance it can get for roads.  Council Member Singleton agreed that more 
discussion was needed. 



 
Action:  Research what other similar size communities are doing for lobbyists; bring back to Council at a future 
meeting. 
 
Fire Department Mutual Aid from Raleigh 
Presenter:  Rodney Dickerson, Town manager 
  
Mr. Dickerson reported that the City of Raleigh will no longer provide support to Garner Volunteer Fire-Rescue 
in the form of deployment of a Rapid Intervention Team for structural fires effective July 1, 2016.  He has spoken 
with the Raleigh City Manager regarding a possible extension if the Town  has a plan of action in place.    A letter 
has been drafted by Staff for Council’s consideration. 
 
Council Member Kennedy stated he would like to see the letter get out making people aware of the situation.  
Council Member Marshburn stated he supported sending the letter requesting  an extension of time.  Fire Chief 
Matthew Poole advised the Council that he had not received any updates from Raleigh at this time.  Council 
Member Singleton asked Chief Poole to explain the need  for 9 new firefighters and Chief Poole responded that 
3 firefighters are needed for  each of the 3 shifts to maintain the level of service the Town is now receiving.  
Council Member Singleton stated that adding 9 new firefighters- in- training would cost approximately $403,000 
and an additional $26,000 for uniforms.  Council discussed the possibility of adding a 1 ½ cent sales tax increase 
for Public Safety.  Council Member Singleton suggested going with 9 firefighters starting the academy in January 
and raising taxes 1 ½ cent. This increase would generate about $400K.  Mr. Dickerson stated the Town should 
engage Wake County regarding funding for Station 5. 

 
Action:   Rebalance the budget with a 1 ½ cent Public Safety tax increase; place on June 6 Agenda. 
 
 
FY2016-17 Recommended Budget 
Presenter:  Michael Gammon, Budget & Special Projects Manager 

 
Staff presented an update on the FY2016-17 budget with funding updates on the placement of a shelter at 
Garner Rec Park, resurfacing of the parking lot, preserving the fund balance, funding for Garner Fire 
Department, and adding two Police Officers were discussed. 
 
Ms. Wortham explained the changes made by the Budget Team regarding the fund balance sheet.  A line for 
“Revenue Savings Plan” was added under the category of “Committed” to reflect the amount of fund balance 
that was calculated for that purpose.  
 
Mr. Hodges stated the Garner Rec Park shelter and parking lot resurfacing could be funded from Parks and 
Recreation bonds.  Mr. Hodges also provided an update on the Development Services software.  This project will 
be phased, with phase one being approximately $38-40K and full implementation being approximately $60,000 
per year for license fees.   
Mr. Dickerson advised Council that there is a possibility of financial assistance through a Wake County grant to 
assist with the Bryan Road Joint Use Project.   
 
Mr. Dickerson advised Council of the increased cost to continue the Town’s Capital City Club membership and 
after discussion Council decided to eliminate this item from the FY16-17 Recommended Budget. 

 
Motion: Marshburn 
Second:  Johns 
Vote:  3-1 (Council Member Kennedy voted nay) 
 



Council Member Singleton gave a presentation of options for a Public Safety tax increase to enable hiring two 
new police officers and the fixed cost of equipment for each new officer.   Mr. Dickerson noted that more and 
more police presence is requested in neighborhoods. 
 
Action:  Set Public Hearing for June 6, 2016 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Manager Reports 

• Presented a Resolution of Support of the Wake County Transit Plan. 
Motion:  Marshburn 
Second:  Kennedy 
Vote:  Unanimous 

 
• Advised Council of possible Wake County grant funds for the Bryan Road Joint-Use Project. 

 
ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
Montague/Main Street Right-of-Way Easement - The Town purchased a strip of land outside the existing 
Montague Street right-of-way in 1984.  In order to clean-up the mapping in this area, the Wake County Revenue 
Department has requested the Town formally dedicate this land as right-of-way. 

 
Action:  Place on future Consent agenda 
 
 
Drone Launch on Town Property   
 
Town Code revisions are needed to incorporate some fairly recent statutory language defining drones as 
“unmanned aircraft” and distinguishing that from “model aircraft”. 
 
Action:  Place on future Consent agenda 
 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Council Member Singleton 

• Mentioned the rapid progress the old Town Hall building is coming down. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion: Kennedy 
Second:  Singleton 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
 
Pursuant to N.C.G.S.  Section 143-318.11(a)(5) “to discuss possible real estate acquisition and the Town’s 
negotiating position regarding such real estate.” 
 
Motion: Marshburn 
Second:  Johns 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 



RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT:  10:01 p.m. 
 
Motion: Singleton 
Second:  Marshburn 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Rebecca Schlichter 
Deputy Town Clerk 
 


